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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To . .
The Members of JITF URBAN WASTE MANAGEMENT (FEROZEPUR} LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of JITF URBAN WASTE MANAGEMENT
(FEROZEPUR) LIMITED {“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changesin
Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information. L

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the [Indian Accounting - =~

“ Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, its loss, total comprehensive income,
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. o o

Basis of Opinion

- We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section.
143(10} of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rule thereunder, and we have fulfilled our

~ ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that __
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

‘We draw attention to note 21 (14) of notes to Financial statements of “IITF URBAN WASTE
MANAGEMENT (FEROZEPUR) LIMITED” which indicates that the Concessioning Authority i.e,
Municipal Corporation, Ferozepur did not fulfill the conditions / obligations of the Concession
- Agreement and thus the company terminated the concession agreement and referred the matter for ;
“arbitration which is pending before the Arbitral Tribunal. The company is hopeful of getting the
award in its favor. In view of the same there is a material uncertainty that the company would be able
to continue as a going concern. _ ' ' :
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Information Other than the Fih_ancial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this Auditors’ Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

~In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our resﬁonsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated, ' :

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
- other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
- with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
' changes in equity of the Company inaccordance with the Ind AS -and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ehsuring the accuracy and éompléteness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. ' ' ' '

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
- to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using

" the going concern basis of accounting unléss management either intends to liquidate the Company or

to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
" ‘The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

~ Auditors’ Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
. are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an-auditor’s report
- that "i_ncludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance-is a high level of assurance; but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
: exis't'_s'. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in

~ the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the econo
on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audlt in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professmnal skepticism throughout the audit. We also: '

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain andit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system'in place and the operating effectweness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estlmates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, mcluding the
' disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlymg transactions and events in a
manner that achleves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
~financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors

~ in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any 1dent1f1ed mlsstatements in the fmanc1al statements

- We commumcate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit fi indings, including any 51gn1f1cant deﬁclenmes in

K mternal control that we 1dent1fy during our audit.

" We also provide those charged w1th governance with a. statement that we. have complied with
- relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relatlonshlps and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our mdependence, and
where applicable, related safeguards. - : o

_ From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determme those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31,2019 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
 report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely _
- rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outwelgh the _public interest
_benefits of such commumcatlon '

' Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requlrements

L As requlred by the Companies [Audltor 5 Report] Order 2016 (“th
- Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section. 1
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Annexure ‘A’ a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable. '

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
- belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. '

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books: ' o '

(€) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Change in Equity and the
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015;

(e) _On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019
* taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019
- from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

| (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to Annexure ‘B’.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11- of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us: - o '

i. The _Compainy does not have any pending litigations as on March 31, 2019;

_ ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses; ' '

iil. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company; - : o _ _ .

(h}The company has not paid any managerial remuneration under the provisions of Section 197 read

_' with Schedule V of the'Companies_-Act, 2013.'Accord_ingly; provisions of clause 3 (xi) of the Order are
not applicable to the company. _ -

For N.C. Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 003273N

. L
| -Aditi Aggarwal
Partner
M.No. 521588
Place : New Delhi

- e
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ANNEXURE A’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

_ {Annexure referred to in our report of even date to the members of JITF URBAN WASTE
- MANAGEMENT (FEROZEPUR) LIMITED on the accounts for the year ended March 31, 2019)

1.

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets,

(b) A major portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management in
accordance with a phased programmed of verification once in two years adopted by the
company. In our opinion, the frequency of the verification is reasonable having regard to the

size of the company and the nature of its assets. To the best of our knowledge, no material
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(é) The Company does not have any immovabie property wherein reporting requirément with
respect to title deed is applicable. :

" The company does not have inventory. Accordingly, the provisioﬁ's of clause 3(ii} of the

Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the company.

_ Acéording to the information and the éxplanations given to us, the company has not granted

any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partriership or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), 3(ii)(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the order are not
applicable to the company and hence not commented upon. - : :

~ The company has not granted any loans or given any guarantee and security covered under -
.. Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of
the order are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon. '

According to the information given to us, the company has not accepted any deposits under the

provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 or any other relevant provisions of

the Companies Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 as amended from
time to time. No order has been passed with respect to Section 73 to 76, by the Company Law
Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other
tribunal. - : R - - .

| To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the maintenance of cost records as specified by
~ the Central Government under sub-section (I} of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
- applicable to the company. o R - '

" {a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee’ state insurance, income tax,
~duty of customs, goods & services tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally been

- regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities and there are no undisputed dues
~ outstanding as at 315t March, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they
* became payable. : " : : '




N.C. AGGARWAL & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

10.

11.

12,

13,

14

15,

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues in
respect of income tax and goods & services tax which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

_ ln our opinion, on the basis of books and records examined by us and according to the _
information and explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues
. to financial institutions. The company does not have any dues to banks, government or

debenture holders.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial pnblic offer or further public offer or
debt instruments. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to
the company. -

According to the mformatlon and explanatlons given to us and as represented by the
Management and based on our examination of the bocks and records of the Company and in
accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have been informed that no
case of frauds has been committed on or by the Company or by its officers or employees during
the period. :

- The company has not paid any managerial remuneration under the provisions of Section 197

read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordmgly, provisions of clause 3 (xi) of the
Order are not appllcable to the company. '

The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provmons of clause 3 [xn] of the Orcler
are not applicable to the Company . :

The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 w.r.t. transactions with the related parties, where applicable. Details of the transactions

 with the related parties have been dlsclosed in the financial statements as requlred by the

apphcable accountlng standards.

Accordmg to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordlngly,
prov131ons of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not appllcable to the Company

According to the information and explanatmns given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactlons with

_directors or persons connected with him as covered under Section 192 of the Companles Act,
2013. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 [xv) of the Order are not appllcable to the Company
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16.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to be
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, provisions
of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For N.C. Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants '

.No. 521588
Place : New Delhi
Dated: 2 18¢ ‘Nay,zo
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* ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT |

Annexure referred to in our report of even date to the members of JITF URBAN WASTE
~ MANAGEMENT (FEROZEPUR) LIMITED on the accounts for the year ended 315t March, 2019

| Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) :

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JITF URBAN WASTE _
MANAGEMENT (FEROZEPUR} LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 315t March, 2019 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date, '

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls _ _
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing -and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
and the components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
- Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal.
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
- and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliabie financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
- Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
_Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
.. reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
| respects, ' ' : S o '

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the'intemal _

" financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of -

internal financial controls over financia] reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal -
financial -controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing -and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
* assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment; including the assessment of
- the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

- We beliéve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financiai controls system over financial reporting
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. Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Fmancnal Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2} provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that. receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
" and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or dlSpOSltlon of the Companysassets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.”

- Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

- Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
~ the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
~ to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in condltlons or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deterlorate

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls

- system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company and the components of internal control stated-in the Guidance
.Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL '

* For N.C. Aggarwal & Co.
" Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 003273N

Aditi Aggarwal
Partner

M.No. 521588
Place : New Delhi

Dated 2]_9{' ”@/,20'9 :




N o : ' : ' L . Asat Asat
_ Partioulars . - noteNO  march 3, 2019 March 31, 2018
- - ASSETS :
- {1) Non-current assets o _ : - P - .
) {a) P'roberty, Piant and Equipment : o B 11,01,69,667 1,62,39,825
(b) Capital work-in-progress _ ' . _ " 6,31,67,733 631,67,733
" {c) Intanglble assets - o 2 87,603 1,56,947
-{d} Fitiancial Assets. o ) _ oo T .
(i) Other financial assets = . - - 3 . . -10000 10,000 °
2) . Currentassets © ‘ : . : ' : T
. {a) Financial Assets : . : :
(i} Trade receivables ; - 4 ..93,99,873 93,99,873
(i) Cash and cash equlvalents 5 3 ;30,960 6,36,480
~ {b) Current tax assets {Net) 6 8,528 16,07,754
* (c) Other current assets o 7 14,211,319 . 4,14,997
. TOTALASSETS . - R R 8,45,85,683 9,16,33,609
. EQUITY AND LIABII.ITIES - S : ; o
Equitv ' , . N o
(a) Equity ‘Share capital . : . 3_ 8 - 587,560 _ 587,560
. {b).Other Equity Co - - I (24,05,14,545) (15,11,76,169).
o Liabilities e e S s
{1), Non- current Ilabilitles
© {a) Financial Liabilities _ _ . S o
- {1} Borrowings' _ o . S 10 ©.28,30,94,961 23,26,57,910
.. (i) Othier financial liabilities S | 3,21,27,566 47,58,286
{2} - Current liabilities L . : B SRR
¢ ({a) Financial Liabilities _ T o
(i) Trade payables- o R R 12 .
- - Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprlses oS e ' - . L
- Other than Micro and Small Enterprlses T © 7 '54,80,105 - 13,96,797-
' (if) Other financial liabilities S P ' 13 . 1115632 6,97,324
(b} Othér -current liabilitiés - ; S 14 26,94,404 27,11,901
 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABII.ITIES ' ’ A . 8,45,85,683 9,16,33,609
'Srgmflcant accodntlng polu:les and notes to ﬁnancial statements e o

JITF Urban Waste Management (Ferozepur) Lirnlted
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019 '
© CIN No.U90000UP2011PLCO69642 .

" {Amount In )

As per our report of even date attached

N

Umesh Chopra-
~ Director

. DIN-05277483 .

For and o behalf of the Board of Directors of

“For N.C. Aggarwal & Co: : S ' ; ' . JITF Urban Waste Management (Ferozepur} leited
+, * Chartered Accountants : S - . N . .
. Firm Registration No. 003273N

Alok Kurnar
" . Director

' DIN-00930344




- JITF Urban Waste Management (Ferozepur) Limitedl'

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2019

{Amount in ¥)

Year Ended

- : Year ended
. Partlculars Note No March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
.1 .Revenue from operations 15 - 14,46,830
Il Other income - 16 2,95,854 6,29,982
1] : Total Income (I+11) 2,95,854 20,76,812
IV Expenses - ' : . - :

" Employee benefits expense 17. 57,942 4,14,040 .
Finance costs - 18 4,74,85,002 . 1,82,74,796 .
Depreciation and amortization expénse 19" 61,39,503 71,56,706 -
Other expenses ' . 20 .3,59,51,783 1,29,16,491

' Total expenses (IV} . -8,96,34,230 3,87,62,033
v Proﬁt/ {loss) before exceptlonal Items and tax (III- IV) ~{8,93,38,376) (3,66,85,221)
vi. Exceptlonal Items : - ' -
Vil Profit[(less)'before tax (V-VI} " (8,93,38,376) {3,66,85,221)
VIl Tax expense: - . B
- (1) Current tax - - -
" (2) Deferred tax . . - -
I : Total Tax Expense {VIII) . -
X Prdfit (Loss) for the year {VI_I—VIII} S SRR ) {8,93,38,376) . {2,66,85,221)
* X  Other Comprehensive Income . '
: Items that wiil not be reclasslﬂed to profit and Ioss
{i) Re-measurement gains (Iosses} on defined benefit plans | - -
{u} income tax effect on above ¢ - -
Total Other Comprehenswe lncome - -
-, Xl ~ Total Comprehensive Incon‘le for the year (IX+X}{Comprising o | _
profit {loss) and other comprehensive income for the year) (8,93,38,376) - _(3,66,85,221).
- il - ‘Earnings per equity share - -
© . {1) Basic {Amount in T) (14.39) {5.91)
(2) Diluted {Amountin¥) - (14.39) {5.91)

" M,No.521588"
‘" Place : New Delhi

Slgnlﬂcant accounting policies and notes to fmanaal statements

As per our report of even date attached
For N.C. Aggarwal & Co, '
Chartered Accountants '

- 'Firm Registration No. 003273N

Dated : 21st May 2019

- 21

For a_nd'on hehalf of the Board of Directors of -
NTF Urban Waste ianhagement {Ferozepur) Limited

mesh Chop
. Pirector Y~
. DIN~ 05277483

Alok Kumayr

Director .

DIN-00930344




A Equlty Share Capltal

_ JITF Urban Waste Management (Ferozepur} Limited .
STATEMENT 0|= CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCI—I 31, 2019

(Amount'in ©

< Ba’lénce as at April 1, 2017

5,987,560
- |Changes in aquity share capital durlng F.Y.201.7- 18 -
- |Balance as at March 3%, 2018 . 5,87,560
Changes in equity share capital during F.Y.2018-19 o R
Balance as at March 31, 2019_ i . 5,87 560 : '
) B.‘_Other' Equity'
_ . . ) ltems of Other {*  Total -
Equilty . Reser\res end Surplus Compre_hensh_re
Zero Coypon : Income
. Lo component | .
S Compulsorily . .
Particulars -, of compound | - i : - : o
v ' " Hnancial . Cq_nverﬂblﬂ Securlties’ . |Re-measurement of
) y 8 H ecurith :
instruments* Dehentures Premlum Retalned Earnings|  the net deflned Total
. B . beneflt Plans :
Bafance as at April. 1, 2017 . 2,48,72,995 | ' 6,15,00,000 9,94,91,982 .’ {30,03,18,352) . {37,573)] (11,94,90,948)
.Tutal Compreheansive income for the \rearZU.’t? 18 - o . : - (3,66,85,221) S - (3,66,85.221)| -
o Balance as at March 31, 2018 2,48,72,995 | '5,15,00,[)00 : 9,94,91.982, ) -'[33,?0,03,5?3} {3?,573} {15,11,?6,_16_9} .
NTotai Ccmprehensi\re Income for the vear 2018 1g : N L - - ) [8,93,3 ,376) - (8,93.38,3?5] .
Balance as at March 31, 2019 ; ] Z 48, ?2 995 | . 6,15, 00,000 : 9.94.91;_?_8;_; l'42,63,41!949) - (37,573)] . (24, ¢ "545I

*3 75, 600 4% cummu{ative Optlonalhr Gonvertible Preference Shares (COCPS) having face \r‘alue of Rs: 100/- each and premium of! Rs. 400.-’ on each COCPS alloted on 30th January, 2015
The COCPS Shall be redeemed/converted at the option of the investor after 12 years in 3 equal annual instalments. In case of exerclse of option bv Tnvestor for canversion of COCPS each
COCPS shall ba converted into 10 equity shares ef Rs. 1Df each. {Net of debt portion of Rs 6,34,35, 023} o P o :

**61 500 Zero Coupon Cempulsorily Convertible Debenture of face value of Rs. 1000/- each 15 convertible into 100 equity shares of Rs, 10/ each for each debenture after the perlod oi

As per our report of even date attached i

For N.C, -Aggarwal & Co.

Dated : 21st:Ma~,r

r'
L

The accompanylng .netes_fermé an integral'pa_rrt'efthese financial statements,

Fyears from the date of Iast tranche of €CD Aliotment i.e. 23th Nevember 2012 or Iong stop data i.e. 18th Decemher, 2013 whlchever Is earller.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

- - IITF Urhan Waste Management {Ferozepur} Limited - -~

Chartered Accountants

‘ Aq-i—____ -
Pdrtner _ : Alok Kumar
M.No: 521588 ' Director
Place : New Dejhi,

© DIN-00930344

T T




- Partner .
. _M.No. 521538

- JITF Urban Waste Management {Ferozepur) Limited
- Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2019

© (Amount in ¥)

“ __PARTICULARS Year Ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018
- 1A, CASH INFLOW {QUTFLOW) FROM THE OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND EXCEPTIONAL ITE& {8,93,38,376) . {3,66,85,221)
-|Adjustments for : H c ' '
Aidd/(Less) - N
Depreciation 61,386,503 71,56,706
Interes_t Expenses - 2,00,41,168 1,64,70,107
Interest Income {2,95,854) 2,58,84,817 {23,504) 2,36,03,309
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES - {6,34,53,559) {1,30,81,932)
Adjustments for : o : :
. Trade Receivables - (13,15,866}
_ Loans and advances and other assets - {9,96,322) _ 5,922 : )
. Trade and Cther Payables 3,18,53,399 8,08,57,077 (17 46 279,\ - {30,58,223)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS ' ) {3,25,96,482] - {1,61,40,135)
TaxPaild . 15,98,226 | . K 4,70,072.
NET CASH INFLOW / ( OUTFLOW ) FROM OPERATING ‘ACT TVITIES (3,09,97,256) . {1,56,70,063)] -
~|B. CASH INFLOW/{OUTFLOW) FROM INVESTMENT ACT IVIT|ES ’ . ) e
*Interest Received 2,95,853 | 25,00,384 -
“|NET CASH IN FLOW{[OUTFLOW}FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ’ '2,95,853 T 25,00,384 |
“lc. cAsH INFLOW/{OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES P
*Jhterest paid [2 00,41 168) {1,64,70,107)
Increase{{Decrease] In Short Term Borrowings - {13,98,00,000}
Increase/(Decrease} iri Long Term Borrowings 5 04,37 051 16,92,22,887 : _
. |NET casH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING ACT IVITIES -.3,03,95,883 o ) 1,29,52,780
-|NET CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS " (3,05,520) '(2,16,899}
Cash and cash equivalents at begmnlng of the year 6,365,480 8,53,379.
Cash and cash equivalants atend of the year 3,30,960 5,36,480

~NOTE:

1 Increasef(decrease} in long term-and short term horrowings are shown net of repayments,

2 Figures in bracket mdlcates cash out flow. : :
* 3. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the Indll’ECt method set out in IND AS-7 'Statement of Cash Fluws
4, The accompanymg notes forms an Integral part of these financial statements

- As perour report_ of even date _attached .

For NC Aggarwal & Co,

Chartered Accountants § :
Registration Ng 003273N e

For and on behalf of the Board of Diractors 6f
- JITF Urban Waste Management (Ferozepur) Limited

. DIN- 05277483

Alok Kumar

Director
‘DIN - 00930344




. JITF Urban Waste Management (Ferozepur) lelted

: Notes to Fmanmal Statements

L

1. Property, Plant and Equipmerit

- (Amount in ¥)

Plant and

Office

"Furniture and

Vehicles

Computers’

As at March 31, 2019 .

' 87,603 |

. Partic_ulgrs Equipments Equipments Fixtures ' Total
Gross Block ' ' g : e : . . :
|As at April 1, 2017 - '1,21,58,567 |  5,44,916 30,735 | 3,89,39,793 | 3,87,314 5,20,61,325
Additions : - ' - - - - S
|Disposal/Adjustments . .- - - T - - - Ca
“|As at March 31, 2018 . 1,21,58,567- 5,44,916 30,735 | 3,89,39,793 | 3,87,314 '5,20,61,325
Additions -~ - : - Coe . . - ' .
Disposal/Adjustments - . - - - | - 1 - E - |
|Asat March 31, 2019 1,21,58,567 544,916 |- 30,735 | 3!89,39,793 | 3,87,314 5,20,61,325 |
Accumulated Depreciation ' o S R R ) .
As at April 1, 2017 1,02,30,844 (  4,44,799 | . 27,756 | 1,77,27,817 | 3,02,923|  2,87,34,139 |
[Charge for the year 10,78,410 | 46,894 .1,033°|  59,08,283 | 52,742 ' 70,87,362
Disposal/Adjustments . .- S - S U T 5 1]
" {As at March 31, 2018 1,13,09,254 | 4,91,693 | 28,789 | 2,36,36,099 | 3,55,665 3,58,21,500
Charge for the year ' 1,22,798 25,977 . 408 59,08,281 [ . 12,694 60,70,158
Disposal/Adjustments , - - . - - - e
As at March 31, 2019 1,14,32,052 | = 5,17,670 29,197 | 2,95,44,380 | 3,68,359 -4,18,91,658 |
Net carrying amount Lo . _ _ o
As at March 31, 2018 ..8,49,313 - 53,223 1,946 | 1,53,03,694 31,649 - 1,62,39,825
As at March 31 2019 - 7,26,515 27,246 | 1,538 93,95,413 18,955 - 1,01,69,667
2. lntangible Assets
) Pa’rtlcu[ars Software
Gross Block _ :
|As at April 1, 2017 . 3,65,170 \
Additions ' LT - ) .
Dmposal/AdJustments CL '
As at March 31 2018 3,65,170
Additions -
DISpOSEVAdeStmentS -
_|As at March 31, 2019 _  3,65170 |
Accumulated Depreciation - T
As at April 1, 2017 - 1,38878 |
Charge for the year 69,345
Disposal/Adjustments- - “
As at Ma rch 31, 2018 2,08,223 |
‘(Charge for the year - 69,344 |
.| Disposal/Adjustments - :
As at March 31, 2019 2,772,567 |:
Net carrying amount TR
AsatMarch31,2018 .~ . ./ | = 7 1,56,947




NTF Urban Waste Management (Ferozepur) leited

Notes to Financual Statements

{Amount In &} -

shall be converted into 10 eqmty shares of Rs.10/- each,

P vieulars As at "As at
articu March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
3. Other non-current financial assets
Securlty Deposits :
- Unsecured considered good 10,000 10,000
- Total Other non current ﬂnanclal assets__ . 10,000 10,000
. 4, Trade reeeivables :
a) Trade: Recelvabies c0n5|dered good Secured - ' : - - .
b) Trade Recewables considered good - Unsecured 93,99,873 53,99,873 -
© ¢} Trade Receivabies which have signlficant increase in Credlt Rlsk - ' -
d) Trar:le Receivables credlt lmpalred - . -
. Total Trade _Re_cei\rables. .93,9_9,873 93,99,_873
s, Cash and cash equwalents
' Ba !ances with Banks
On current accounts _ o o _ 3,30,960 6,36_,48Q
: : - Total Cash and Cash equivalents __.3,30,960. 6,36,480
6. Current tax assets (net)
Advance taxation o 8,528 16,07,754
S Total Current Tax Assets . 8,528 . 16,07,754
'7.:Qt_her current assets
Advances fo vendors - . o L 3,611 2,92,90O
. Advance to Employees 1,19,280 - 1,04,261
_ Other receivables e . 12,88,428 . 17,836
o : “Total Other Current Assets 14,11,319 4,14,997
8. Equitv_share Capital
-Authorised o ' S .
1,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each . '10,00,000 - 10,00,000
4 20,000 Preference Shares of 100/-each 4,20,00,000- 4,20,00,000 -
. oL : 4,_30,00,000 4,30,00,000
lssued ' ' ' - L L
58, 756 Eqmty shares of Rs, 10! each fully pald up’ ..5,87,560 5,87,560
- 5,87,560 5,87,560
. Subscribed and fully paid-up I R
’ 58 756 Equnty shares of. Rs, 10/ each fully pald up : 5,87,560. 5,87,560
i ' 5,87,560_ 5,87,560
4% Cumulatwe Optionally Convertlble Preference Shares 1COCP81 S o _—
3, 75 600 Preference Shares of Rs. 100)' each fully pald up, , 3,75,60,000 ) 3,75,60,_000
: __3,7560,000 8,75,60,000
o {a) Reconcrllatlon of the number of shares
- Equity shares
Shares outstanding as at the beginnlng of the year - 58,756 58,756
- . Shares outstanding as at the erid of the year . 58,756 58,756
- 4% Cumulative Optionally Convertrble Preference Shares (COCPS)* N S L
" .. Shares gutstanding as a1 the beginning of the year -3,75,600
Shares outstandmg as at the end of the year -

: 3,75 suo//cJ
13,75, 600 4% Cummu]ative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares (COCPS) hav]ng face Value H#R{.
“premium of Rs. 400/- each alloted on 30th .Ianuary, 2015, These will be redeemed/converted at {
after 12 years in 3 equal annual instdlments, In case of exercise of optlon by |nvestor for conversig




JITF Urban Was'te Management (Ferozepur) Limltefl_

" Notes to Financial Statements

L

(Amount In 3)

-(iiil Reta_lned _earnings_ .

'10..

00| -

{c) Terms/ nghts attached to'shares

- Equity Shares ° "o o
" The Company has only one class of equity shares havlng a par value of ?10{ per equity share Each equaty shareholder is
. entitled to one- \rote per share. : .

Preference Shares

Preference shareholder (COCPS} would be entitled to vote cmh,nr on [ssues relating to COCPS

9. Otherequlty - R

- {i) Equity component of other financial instruments.
" Equity comporient of other financial instruments* -, .
_Total-EqUitv_component_ of other financial instruments )

| 2,48,72,995

particul Asat As at
artewars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{b) Detalls of shareholders holdlng more than 5% shares in the company:
Equity Shares .
a : o ) As at March 31, 2019 ‘As at March 31, 2018
' ) ' No, of
Name of.quulty Shareholtlers | No, of % of holding 0.0 % of holding
- - . : shares - " | shares .
IITF Urban Infrastructure Limited* 52880| - 90| 52880 " 90
- |Ladurner Impianpi S.R.L Italia. - 5g76] 10| 587
|Total 58756 100| 58756
* [ncluding 6 Shares held by PersonjCompanles as nomlnees oleTF Urban Infrastructure Limlted
- Praference Sha_res : :
o As at March 31, 2015 As at March 31, 2018
Name of COCPS Shareholder No. of. o of holding No, of % of holdlng
shares 1 ) shares | S
~ [TF Urban Infrastructure lelted 375600 200 | 375600 100
Total - ~ 375600 200 | 375600

100-|

“

'2,48,72,995

2;48,72,995 '

-2,48,72,995

: *3,75, 600 4% Cummulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares (COCPS) havlng face Value of Rs 100{ each and
" premium of Rs. 400/- on each CaCPS alloted on 30th January, 2015. The COCPS Shall be redeemed{converted at the option of

the investor after 12 years in 3 equal annual instalments. In case of exercise of optign by investor for conversion of -
CocCPs, each COCPS shall be converted mto 10 equrty shares of Rs.10/- each (Net of debt portron of Rs 6,34,35 023}

. (II) Compulson!v Convertrhle Debentures
_ Balance as per last financral Statements
: Total Compulsorily Convertihle Debentures

L

) I
Balance as per last: f|nancral statements

-'Add Profnt after tax tra nsferred fram Statement of profit and Loss
. ~ Total retamed earnlngs -

[w} Other Comprehensive tncome {OCI) reserve -

_Balance as per last financial statements ' .
Total Other Comprehensive Income (DC!l reSer\re

r

6,15,00,000

" 6,15,00,000

6,15,00,000 .

6,15 00,000

{33 70, 03 573} '

(8,93,38,376)

61,500 Zero Coupon Compulsonly Con\rertlble Debenture of face value of Rs, 1000} each is convertrble intg 100 equlty shares
_ of Rs, 10/- each for edch debenture after the period of Tyears frorn the date of last tranche of cco Allotment le 23th '
- Novembier 2012 or Iong stop date i.e. 19th December, 2013 whwhever s earller ' o

{30,03,18,352)

. (3,66,85,221)

(42,63,41,949) '

_ {33,70,03,573}

(37,573)

(37,573)




JITF Urban Waste Management (Ferozepur) lelted

Notes to Fmancial Statements

(Amount in 2)

~ Other than Micro and'SmaII Enterprises

‘Dues to Emp!oyees '

' Statu_t_ory _Dues

Particulars Rsat ' As at
' March 33, 2019 March 31, 2018
{v} Secu r_itiee Premium Lo
Balance as per fast financial statements _ 9,94,91,982 9,94,91,982
Total Securities Premium 9,94,91,982 9,94,91,982
Total other equity {24,05,14,545) {(15,11,76,169) -

Nature and Purpose of Reserves

Retalined Earnings represent the undistributed.profite of the Company.

: Secunty premlum account is created when shares are |ssued at premlum The Company may issue fully paid-up bonus shares i
o its members out of the securlty premlum account and can use this resetve for buy-back of shares,

l

Other Cornprehensive'lncom'e Resarve represent the balance in equity for items to be accounted in Other Compreh'enswe
Income. OCl is clasmfied Ihto §), Items that will not be reclassified to proflt and loss i), Items that will be reclasmﬂed to profit

and Ioss R
10. No'n Current borrowings

Unsecured :
Liability Component of Compound F|nanc1af Instrument (COCPS)
Loans from related parties *
Total Non Current Borrowlngs

.o Refer Note no 21. 9 for detalls of Loan from related party,

: 11. Other n'on-curre'nt financial Iiabllitles

Provision for Unwmdlng Charges on fair valuatlon of finanual
Instrument *

Total other non-current finangial liabilities -

* Refer Note no 21.9 for details of Unwinding’ Charges on falr
valuation of financial Instrument :

12._ Trade 'pay_ables

Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises*’

‘Total Trade payables

6,34,35,023

6,34,35,023

21,96,59,938 16,92,22,887
28,30,94,961 23,26,57,910
3,21,27,566 47,58,286
3,21,27,566 " 47,58,286
54,80,105 13,96,797
54,80,105 13,96,797

*There are no Micro and Small Enterprises; to . whom. the Company owes. dues as at 31st. ‘March 2019 This Information as
Required to be dlsclosed under the Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises, Development Act 2006 has been Determined to the.

extent such Parties have been Identified on the basis of information available with the Company. "

13. Other current financlal liabilities -

Payeble to related pamée * .
Other autstanding financial Ilabllltles

*® Refer Note no 21, .9 for detaifs of payable to related party

14, Other current Ilabilltres

6,00,814

Total other curr'ent fin"ancial Iiabilitie_s

78,253
10,28,576" 96,510 . - -
. 8,803 L
. 11,15,632 :'6,97,324 .
26,94,404 27,11,901
26,94,404 - 27,11,501

. Total other current liabillties .




JITF Urban Waste Management (Ferozepur) Limlted
" Notes to Financial Statements

. (Amount in )

ﬂ’

p rt' il Year Ended Year ended
articutars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
. 15. Revenue from operations : -
Tipping Fee. R - _14,46,830
- Total Revenue from operations . 14,46,830
16, Other Income
Iiiterest Income | - 2,95/854 23,504
~Other Non Qperating Incame _ _ - 6,06,478
: ' Total other Income 2,95,854. 6,29,982
17, Emplov_ee- benefit exgenses
Salary and Wages : 49,690 © 3,45,596
Contribution to Provident and other funds’ - - 19,523
‘Workmen & Staff welfare expenses 8,252 48,921
: Total Emplovee benefit expenses 57,942 4,14,040
18. Flnaece Cost
a} Interest: Expense - - :
" - Unwinding Charges on falr valuation of flnanclal Instrument 2,73,65,280. 15,02,400
- Other Interest : 2,00,41,168 1,64,70,107
b) B_a_n_k and Finance charg_es . . - 74,554 3,02,289
' - s Total Finance Cost - 4,74,85,00? '1,82,'74,7_96_
+19, Dep_recietlpn and amortfsat!on
Depreciation 60,70,159 - | 70,87,362
Amortisation : : - : 69,344- 69,344 -
o ' Total Depreciation and amortisation 61,39,503 _71,56,706
20. Other expen_see'
_ Power and Fuel - 6,08,271
* Tipping Fee Paid - '28,61,831
Hire Charges =~ - . 2,91,740
Wieghment Charges - - 38,820 -
Transportation Cost - 86,000
Repalrs to Plant and Machmery S ©1,29,003 -
Rent ; - 2,76,000. 4,88,141
o Rates and Taxes. - © 1,835 . 1,274 S
_ _Insurance ) : 3,89 910 - 3,27,131 -
Repair and’ Matntenance Others o . R _ 128,904
Traveiling and Conveyance - . T a v 8,99 690 1,11,913
© . Vehicle Upkeep and Maintenance e : ' 12,875
" Postage and Telephones : B © 28,803
Security Expenses. - , 16,36,928 - 8,33,247°
Legal and Professional Fees - 3,17,38,416 '68,95,566
Auditors' Remuneration 35,400 . 35,760
Provision agst GST Receivables '9,29,066 e
Miscellaneous Expenses . : » 44,538 . 1,37,212
: . - Total'other expenses 3 59 51,73 -1,29,16,491

S




' The gain or loss ar|s|ng on the dlsposal or retarernent of an item of property, p[ant and eqmp _
‘difference. betweeh the sales proceeds and the carrwng amount of the asset and is recognlsed in the Sta e ent of Prof‘t and
-Loss on the date of d|sposal or retlrement - - :

JITF URBAN WASTE MANAGEMENT (FEROZEPUR) LIMITED -
. Significant Accountmg Pollcres and Notes to Financial Statements
Note No: 21

-, Corporate and General Information

' JITF Urban Waste Management (Ferozepur} Limited is a Company incorporated on 10" October, 2011 with the maln object to -

develop-and implement a viable' and environmentally sustainable MSW management to scientifically manage. the coflection,
_transportatlon, processing and.disposal of MSW and gainfullv utilize it to produce compost, Refuse Derlved Fuel {"RDF") and/or
power, and dispose-off the residual matter in an environmentally benign manner by Developing, Constructing, Operatlng and

: Maintaining an Integrated Municipai Solid Waste Management Projects for Ferozpur Cluster In PunJab

2. Basis of preparatlon

The Annual financial statement have been prepared complylng with all Indian Accounting Standards notified.under Section 133 :
of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule 2015.

_ The S:gmt‘cant accountlng pohcies used in preparlng the flnanclal statements are set out in Note ne. 3 of the Notes to these

Finanmal Statements

The preparation of the fmancial statements requlres management to make estimates and assumptions. Actual resuits could.
wvary from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptlons -are reviewed on an ongoing basls. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised If the revision effects only that period ar in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future years (refer Note no 4 on critical -
accountmg estrmates, assumpt[ons and Judgements) '

3.0 Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual ba5|s and under the historical cost conventlon except following B

o wh|ch have been measured at fair- value;

= financia) assets and liabifities except certain Investments and borrowmgs carried at amortised cost,
e defined beneflt plans — plan assets measured.at fair value ' :

The f‘nanclal statements are presented In Indian Rupees, whlch is the Company's functional and presentat|on currency andall -

i amounts are rounded to the nearest rupee thereof except as stated otherwise,

_' 3.2 Propertv, Plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equ:pment are carrled at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated Impalrment losses, lf any. -
Cost includes expend|ture that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the

“asset’s carrylng amount or recoghised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic

benef‘ts associated W|th the itém will flow to the Company and the cost of the |tem can be measured rehably

Assets are deprecrated to the residual values on a straight I|ne basis over the estlmated useful lives, based an technical

" estimates. Assets residual values and usefut lives are- reviewed at each financial year end con5|der:ng the physical condition of -

the assets and benchmarking analys|s or whenever there are indicators for review of resldual value and useful lifa. Freehoid N

- land is not depreclated Estrmated useful lives of the assets are as follows

'.Categorv of Assets . - s . Years . -
Equipment & Machinery -~ |
-Plant & Machinery .~~~ 5
Other Offlce Equipments ' o
-Computer equipment” : - 35,

- Office equipment =~ - .~ . 3.
-Furniture&f‘xture - L 5
--Vehrcles : o o 810
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(. Transoctions and bar‘ances '

. Non monetary items that are measured at fa|r value in foreign currencv are translated u n :
- whenthe fair value was determlned ' : : :

JITF URBAN WASTE MANAGEMENT (FEROZEPUR) LIMITED .
Srgnrflcant Accountmg Pollcles and Notes to Finanolal Statements
Note No: 21 .

3.3 Intangubie Assets

Identifiable intangible assets are recognlsed a) when the Companv controls the asset, b) it Is. probable that future economlc
beneﬂts attributed to the asset will flow to the Companv and c) the cost of the asset can be reliabiv measured.

Computer software sare. capltallsed at the amounts paid to acquire the respective Ilcense for use and are amortlsed over the '
“period of license, generaliv not exceeding five years an stralght line-basls, The assets useful iives are revlewed at each flnancial
year énd, .

i 3 4 lmpairment of non—current assets .

Non current assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes i in clrcumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may nat be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its

- . recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs.of disposal and value in use. For

‘the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the towest levels for which there are separately identiflable cash - :

“inflows which are: largely independent of the ¢ash inflows from other assets or groups of -assets (cash-generating: units) Non-

-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an |mpa|rment are reviewed for possible reversal of the lmpairment at the .
end of each reporting perlod : o .

3.5 Cash and cash equlvalents

. Cash and cash equrvaients includes cash on hand and at bank, deposits held at caII with banks, other short term highly liquid-'

investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are

: subject to an inslgnrficant risk of changes In value and are held for the purpose of meeting short -term cash commitments.

. For the purpose of the Statement of, Cash Flows, cash and cash equlvalents conS|sts of cash and short term deposlts as defmed )

above; net of outstanding bank overdraft as they. are being considered as integral part of the. Cornpanv § cash management

_3 Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowungs In current Iiabllltles in the balance sheet. ,

3.6 Inventories _

' inventorles are valued at the lower.of cost and net reaiizable value except scrap, which is, vaiued at net reallzabie value Net -
" tealisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordlnarv course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the . .
-+ estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of canversion and other -

costs mcurred in brlnglng the inventorles to their respectlve present Iocation and condition Cost is computed on the weighted o '_ 5

_ average ba3|s

3.7 Forelgn currencv relnstatement and translation :

(a)‘ Functronai and presentatron currency

' Flnanc|al statements have been presented in Indlan Rupees {%), which i |s the Compan\;r s functional and presentatron currencv

b

Transactlons in forergn currencies are initially recorded by the Company at rates prevarllng at the date ‘of the transactlon

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary

- assets and Ilabllrtles denominated i foreign currencles at the vearend exchange rates are. recogmsed |n statement of profit b '
"_'andloss I R . _ . e "

o Exchange galn and Ioss on debtors cred|tors and other. than Fnancrng activities are presented in the statement of profit and_' :

~..loss, as other | income and as’ other expenses respectlvely Foreign exchange gain and losses on. flnancing activities to the éxtent -

~ that thev are regarded as-an adjustment to interest costs are presented in the statement of profit and loss as finance costand ‘
: balance gam and Ioss are presented in statement of pi’OfIt and Ioss as other mcome and as. other expenses respectlveiy '

i

e exchange rates at the date :
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_' De recogmtron of fi nancrm‘ gsset
A financial asset is derecognised only when

' the cash flows to one or more recipients

JITF-URBAN WASTE MANAGEMENT (FEROZEPUR) LIMITED
* Significant Accountmg Policies and Notes to Financial Statements
Note No: 21 | -

3.8 Finanoiel instruments — initi'al reoognttio‘n, subsequent measurenmient and impairment

A financial mstrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a ﬂnandal liability or equity
mstrument ofanother entity o -

a) Financi_ai Assets

Financial Assets are classified at amortised cost or falr value through Other Comprehensive Income or fair value through Profit =
or- Loss, depending on its busmess madal for managing those financia! asséts and the assets contractual cash ﬂow
characterlstics S : :

For assets measured at fair value, galns and losses will e|ther be recorded in profit or loss of other comprehenswe income, For
‘investments in debt’ mstruments this-will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. Forinvestments in _
equity instruments, th|s will. depend on whether the company has made an ifrevocable election at the time of initlal L
recogmtlon to account for the equltv mvestment at fair value through other comprehensive Income . :

- The c_ompany reclasslfles debt lnvestments when and on!y when its business model for managing these assets changes.

For impairment purposes s|gn|f|cant flnancral assets are tested on an. mdivldual ba5|s, other f'nanctai assets are assessed '
coliectl\rely in groups that share stmilar credit risk characterlstlcs }

Measurement . \ : : .
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financiai asset at its falr value plus in thie case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the finandlal asset. Transactron ‘

. costs of flnanclal assets carried at fair va!ue through profit or loss dre expensed in prot‘t or loss,

Financial assets W|th embedded denvatwes are constdered in thelr entirety when determining whether thelr cash flows are

: solely payment of princrpal and lnterest

i'- Trade receivables .

- A receivable is classif“ed as a 'trade receivable ifitisin respect to the amount due'from CUstomers on account of goods seld or'
. services rendered in the ordinary course of business, Trade receivables are recogmsed initially at fair value and subsequently
 measured at amortlsed cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. For some trade receivables the
B Compansr may obtain security in the form of guarantee, sacurity deposit or letter of credlt which can be called upon'if the

‘counterparty is in default under the terms of the agreement

Impairment is made on the expected credlt Iosses, Wthh are the present value of the cash shortfalls over the expected life of -

financial assets. THe impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a signiﬂcant increase in credit risk.
The estimated |mpa|rment losses are recognised In -a separate provisign for lmpalrment and the impairment losses are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other expenses

Subsequent changes in. assessment of lmpalrment are’ recognlsed in provisaon for impalrment and the change in impairrnent

 losses are recognlsed In the Statement of Proﬂt and Loss within other expenses
_ For forergn currency trade recelvable irnpau”ment is assessed after rernstatement at ciosrng rates.

_ lndmdual recel\rables which are known to be uncollect|ble are wrltten off by reduclng the carrying amount of trade recewable
~ " and the amount of the Ioss is recognlsed in the Statement of Profit and Loss withln other expenses. - :

e Subsequent recovenes of amounts prewously wrltten off are: credlted to: other Income

. Thé company has transferred the Tights to recelve cash flows from the ﬂnanerai asset

‘Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash ﬂows of the ﬂnanclal asset but ass iligation to pay
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Where the entity has transferred an asset, the company evaluates whether It has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
- of ownership of the financial asset. tn such cases, the financial asset is derecognlised. Where the entity has not transferred
substantially aII risks and rewards of ownershlp of the financial asset, the financial asset is not deracognised, - '

Where the entlty has’neither transferred a finariclal asset nor retalns substantially all risks and rewards of ownership: of the .
~ financial asset, the financtal asset ls derecognised If.the company has net retalned control of the flnanclal asset. Where the _
company retains control of the ﬂnancial asset, the asset Is continued to be recognised to the extent of continulng Involvement '
~inthe f'nanual asset, : : . '

b) Financial Llabillties

‘At lmtral recognrnon all f“nanqal ltabrlltles other than fair valued through profit.and loss are recognrsed mltlaliy at falr value "
_less transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of financial Ilablllty Transal:tlon costs of financlal Ilabillty carried at fair -
- value through prot“ t or loss i is expensed in proﬂt or loss. o L : o

.. Finandial Ilabilitles at falr value through proflt or Ioss

- Financial- Iiabllrtles at fair- value through profit or foss include financial liabilities held for trading. The Company has not_
de3|gnated any fi f’nancral liabilities upon initial measurement recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabllitres
at fair value through profit or loss are at each reportmg date at fair value with all the changes recognized in the Statement of
Proflt and Loss - :

i Flna ncIal Iiablhtles measured at amortised cost

At initial recognltron all f‘nancral liabilities other than fair Valued through profit and loss are. recognised initially at fair value .
~ less.transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of flnandal Ilabilitv Transactlon costs of fmanclal Iiabllltv carried at fair :
' value through prof’t or Ioss is- expensed in profit or loss, :

T JITF URBAN WASTE MANAGEMENT (FEROZEPUR) LIMITED

|

|

|

I

Financial Iiabllities are classiﬂed in two categorles “subseduent ‘measurement of fmancial assets is depended on . initlal

: categorlsatlon These categones and their classiflcatlon are as below ' '

| . :

| i Financial Iiabilrtles at fair value through profit or loss. :
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial llabllltles ‘held for trading. The Company has not-

| designated any financial liabilities upen initial measurement recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabllities. -

| - -at fair value through profit or loss are at each reportlng date at fair value wrth all the changes recognized in the Statement of.

' Profit and. Loss :

' h Fi_na ncial'liabilities measured at amortised cost

Borrowrngs - : .
- Borrowmgs are mrhallv recognlsed at fair value, net of transaction costs mcurred Borrowings are subsequently meéasured at .
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recogmsed fn
profit or loss over the period of the. borrowmgs using the ‘effective interest method, Fees paid.on the establishment of foan -
- facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some. of all of the facility will be
* drawn down. In this case, the fee'is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent.there is no evidence that it Isprobable =
thatlsome ot all of the facmty will be drawn down, the fee is capltahsed as a prepayment for quuldlty servtces and amortised
. over the period of the fac|hty to which it relates. '
| ' Borrowmgs are derecogmsed from the balance sheet when the oblfgatlon speclfled ]n the contract is dlscharged cancelled or N
! -expired, The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to - -
| - anagther party and the cons:deration pald lncludlng any non cash assets transferred or liabilltles assumed is recognased in _
. profitor loss as other gams{(losses) g S :
. Borrowings are classified as current Iiabillties unless the company has uncondltional rlght to defer settlement of the IIab|I|ty for ..
. atleast twelve months after reportlng period o
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Trade. ond other payables - -
A payable Is classified as trade payable’ if it Is in respect of the amount due on account; of goods purchased ot setvices
received in the normal course of. business. Thase amounts represent llabllitles for goods and servrces provided to the Company
prior to the end of financial year which are unpald. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
“payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recoghlsed inItia!Iv at their fair value and
subsequentlv measured at amortlsed cost using the effective interest method :

De-recogmtron of f' nancral !rabrllty

A financial liability is derecognised when the obllgatlon under the liability Is dlscharged or cancelled or expires, The difference
between the- carrying amount of a financial IrabIIItv that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, s recognised in profit or loss as other

.. income or finance costs.A pavable Is' classified as ‘trade payable’ If It Is In réspect of the amount due on  account of goods

purchased or services received in the normal course of business. These amounts represent liabilities for goods-and services

provided to .the Company prior to the end of flnancral year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented.as . -
- current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period, They are recogmsed rnltlallv at their

falr value and subsequentlv measured at amortised cost uslng ‘the effectlve Interest method,

"

-3, 9 Compound financial Instruments

The Imblhty compaonent of a compound f‘nanclal instrument Is recognlsed Initially at falr value of a similar: liability that does not
~have an equity component The equity component is recognised Initially as the difference between. the fair value of the.
- compound firiancial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the Irabilitv component. Any directly attributable transaction .

costs’ are allocated to the Ilabllltv and the equlty components If materlal, in proportlon to their In]tial carrymg amounts

_Subsequent to the Initial recognltion, the liabllity component of a compound financial Instrument Is measured at amortised

- cost using the effective interest rate method, The equity component of a compound f'nanCIaI lnstrument is not re- -measured -

subsequent to Inltlal recognttlon except on conversion or explry,

3 10 Equity share capltal

Ordrnary shares are classified as eqmtv lncremental costs net of taxes. dlrectlv attributable o the issue of new equitv shares

- are reduced from retained earnlngs, net of taxes

' 3.11 Borrowmg costs

]

. Generat and specific borrovvmg costs that are dlrectly attnbutable to the acqulsitlon, construction or productlon of a quallfvlng
_asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset-for its intended use or sale,

Quallfymg assefs are assets that necessarIIy take'a substantlal period of time to get ready for thelr intended use or sale

_ Investment income earned onh the ternporarv Investment of specific borrowlngs pendlng their expenditure on qualafymg assets
s deducted from the borrowmg costs eligible for caprtahsation : : :

- Other borrowlng costs are ex_pensed in the period in which thev are ingurred.

I

'312Taxat|on I S o ' o S | ‘.__'

Income tax expenses or credlt for the perlod comprlsed of tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on. the
.~ applicable income tax rate, the changes -in’ deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary dlfferences and to
. unused tax Iosses minimum. a!ternatIVe tax (MAT) and prewous year tax adjustments :

\

. Tax is recogmsed in the Statement of Proflt and’ Loss except to the extent that It relates to rtems reCOgnIsed directlvr |n equrtv
b other comprehenslve income, in‘such cases the tax is also recognised directly jn‘equity or In other comgrehensive income,
: Any subsequent change in direct tax on iteris initially recognised in equity or.other comprehenswe Income Is also recognised in
'equity or other comprehenswe income, such change could be for change in taxrate, . :

The. current mcome tax charge or credit is calculated on the ha5|s of the tax law enacted after cons:derrng allowances

' exemptlons and unused tax losses under the provlslons of the applicable Income T WS Cnitatax: assets and current tax .
'_|labI|ItIeS are off set and ‘prasented as net.. o o _ o

Ithe tax base of assets c

Deferred income tax" i recognised, using_ th'e I'iabiIity method, on _t_emporarv differerjce
S ' ' . Page | 5




JITF URBAN WASTE MANAGEMENT (FEROZEPUR) LIMITED

- Significant Accountmg Policies and Notes to Financial Statements

Note N0' 21

and liabllrties and their carrying amounts In the financial statements, Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and

- laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the

elated deferred income tax asset Is realised or the deferred income ax Iiabllity Is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary dlffe'rences and deferred tax assets are recognised for all

- . deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to = -

utilise those ternporary dlfferences and losses. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax Ilabilities are off set, and presented.as net._

The carrylng amount of deferrecl tax assets is rewewed at each halance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is rio”

B Ionger probable that suff'cient taxahle profits wiII be-available agamst whlch the temporary dlfferences can be utilised.

: The Company recognises Credit of. MAT as an aSset when there s reasonable certainty that the Company w:ll pay norrnal

income tax during the specified period, Le, the period for which'MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in

, which the MAT. credit becomes eligible to, be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the - o
statement of profit and loss account and included in the deferred tax assets. The carrying amount of MAT Is reviewed at each -
_ balance sheet date, . .

3.13 Revenue recognition and other operating income

‘The -Company has adopted the new standard Ind AS 115, "Revenue from. contracts wrth customers" from April 1, 2018 :
applying- the modified retrospective approach which provides that the cumulative impact of the adoption will be recognised In -

~ retained earnings as of April 1, 2018 and comparatives will not be restated. Ind AS 115 did not have material impact on the

amount or timing of recognltlon of reported revenue except contract acquisition cost which. has been recognised as per
pnnuples of Ind AS 115, .

o) Sale of .goods

' Re\renue from sale of goods is recogmsed when control of products being sold has been transferred to the customer and when S
there are no longer an\;r unfulflled obligations to the customer. - -

".b} Sale of Service—job work

Re\renue fram_job work charges are recogmsed based on stage of completion of the contract subject to job work Stage of
completion is-determined using “Input methods” as a proportlon of cast incurred to date to the total estimated contract cost.

‘Estimated loss on job work to’ be undertaken in future years are provlded for'in the period in whlch the estimate results ina
Jass on jeb work.. : .

c) Other Operating\_!ncome

' Government Grants related to operatlons are recognlsed in books after due conslderation of certalnty of utlllzatlon/recerpt of ~
such incentives, : .

: d_}:Othe_r Inc_ome

Interest

. Interest mcome is recognrsed on a t|me proport|on ba5|s taking into account the arnount outstandlng and the rate applicable .

Dividend. - - : ' -
_ DIVIder‘ld |ncome is recognised when the rlght to recenre divrdend is establlshed

3, 14 Earnmgs per share

-Basrc earnings per share is computed using the net proflt for the- year attrlbutable to the shareholders ‘and weighted average .
'-number of shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average numbers of shares also includes. fixed number of equity
: shares that are issuable on converslon of compulsorily convertible preference shares, debe

frorn the date cons|derat|on is recenrable (generally the date of the|r issue } of such instfu

g1 any other instrument, .

weighted average -
Fag_e‘--]-IG'




-b) Contlngenmes

~ confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of

A wrtua!ly certam then the related asset IS no Ionger a contlngent -asset, but itis recognised as an asset,

' - An asset is classlﬁed as current when It is:

"~ Aliability is classrfled as current when:

The operatmg cycle is the tlme between the acquusltlon of assets for processmg and the|r realisatron in cash or cash
- equwalents - '

Deferred t‘_ax‘asset_s and liabilities are classHied as no"'n-current assets and liabilities,

Standards issued but not yet effective .

JITF URBAN WASTE MANAGEMENT (FEROZEPUR) LIMITED . N
“Significant Accountlng Policies and Notes {o Flnanmal Statements
Note No: 21 -

number of equity and. potential equrtv shares outstandlng during the year Including share options, convertible preference

- shares and debentutes, except where the result would be anti-dliutive. Potential equlty shares that are converted during the
year are included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share, from the beginning of the year or date of issuance-of such' :
potential equity shares, to the date of conversion. .

3.15 Prowslons and contingencles

a} Provisions. L
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, It is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying .economlc benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a rellable
esumate can be made of the amount of the obligation.’ Prowsrons are not recognlsed for future operatlng Iosses

* Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estlmate of the expenditure required to settle the present
-obligation at the end of the’ reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the préesent value is a pre-tax rate that"
reflects current market assessments. of the time value .of meoney and the rlsks specif]c te the liability. The increase in the
prowsion due to the passage of time is recognlsed as interest expense

Contmgent liabilities are disclosed when there Is a possﬁole obllgation arlsmg from past events, the exrstence of wh|ch will be

. the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed
"in the Notes to the Financial Statements. Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when the realisation of income |s

3.16 Current versus non current classrflcatlon

-The Company-presents assets and liabilities in st_atement of ﬁ"na'n',cial position based.on current/non-current classifi catlon

The Company has presented non- current assets’ and current assets before equity, non- current Ilablllties and current llabllltles _
in accordance wrth Schedule |1, Division I of Compames Act, 2013 notlﬂed by MCA

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed ln nermal operating cycle,

b} Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reportmg period, or

~.d} Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Ilabdrty for at Ieast twelve months )

~ after the reporting period. i
AlI other assets are classlfled as non- current.

_ a} ltis expected to be settled in norn1al operatmg cycle,
~b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) Rtis dueto be settled within twelve months after the reporting perlod, or i~ R v
* d) There is no uncondltlonal rlght to defer the settlement of the Iiabillty for at Ieast twel\re months after the reportmg _‘
o penod . : .

All other |labl|ltIeS are classlf‘ed as non- current

3.17 Recent Ind AS Pronouncement
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(g} quurdoted domages T . _ _ "
. L:quldated damages payable are eshmated and recorded as per contractual terms estlmate may \rar\r from actuals as le\ry by -
_ '.customer . '

: mvestments and denvatwe flnanclal instruments, lnterest rate risk is Lhe nsk that th _

JITF URBAN WASTE MANAGEMENT (FEROZEPUR) LIMITED -

‘Significant Aocountlng Policies and Notes to Flnancral Statements
Note No 21 o - -

lnd AS 116 - Leases

~Ind AS 116 was notified by Mlnlstry of Corporate Affalrs on March 30, 2019 end it s appflcable for annual reporting perlods
: beglnnlng on or after April 1, 2019 ' :

‘Ind AS 116 will affect primarily the accountlng by lessees and will result In the recognltlon of alrnost all Ieases on balance sheet.
The standard removes the currént distinction hetween operating and finance leases and requires recognition of an asset {the

nght of-use the Jeased term) and a ﬂnanclal liability to pay rentals for virtually all Jeases contracts, An optiohal exemption exlsts
for short-term and low- value assets. The company has operating lease, does not affect the profitability. The Company will be

able to reasonably estimate the’ |mpact of Ind AS 116 on the flnanclai statement after complehon ofabove stated assessment

-4 CrIticaI accou nting estimates, assumptlons and judgements

- Inthe process of applylng the Company 5 accountmg polmes management has made the following estimates, assumptions and.

Judgements, which have mgniﬂcant effect on the amounts recogmsed in the flnancial statement:

- (o} Property, p!arnt ond eqmpment

(b) fntangrbles

Internal technical of user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intanglble assets Management belleves that assigned

' useful lives are reasonable

e} lncometaxes o - o . ’

Management judgmeritis reqwred for the calculation of prowsmn for income taxes and deferred tax assets ancl Ilabilltles The -
_Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets, The factors used in estimates may
differ from actual outcome which could lead to ngmf“cant adjustment to the amounts reported in' the financial statements '

_.(d) Contfngenc;es '- S

Management -judgement 'is requlred for est|matlng the pOSSlble outﬂow of resources if any, ln respect of .
contmgencles/clalmflltlgatlons agalnst the Company as it’is not’ possﬂ:le to predlct the’ outcpme of pendlng matters wlth'

' aceyracy.

' (e} A.-‘.-‘owance for uncoﬁected accounts recervable and advances : :

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stafed at their nofmal \ralue as reduced by approprlate allowances for

--estimated wrecoverable amounts Individual trade recewables are wntten off when management deems them not- to be_
collect|b|e i) : : : : 3

. {f) insurance cfmms - : o ' _ |
Insurance claims are recognlsed when the Company have reasonable certalnty of recovery Subsequently any change in .
_recoverabuity Is; prowded for. . o

‘o Bl

s

5.0 Finan_clal risk ma_n’ag'ement:..__

51Financral rlsk factors .o S coo

External adwser or lnternal techmcal team assess the remaining useful lwes and ‘residual .value of property, plant and .
- equlpment Management belle\res that the assigned useful lives and residual value are reasonable S

The Companys principal financial Ilabllltles, comprise borrowuhgs trade and other payables. The mam purpose of these_ o

fnanclal liabilities is to manage finances for the Company’s operations The Company’s a S EURASS 't_to Liquichty Tisk:
s Market risk : ki

equ:tv price risk and commodlty risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk in
re cash flows of a

-

_ _ Qiuse of changes ln R
- market prices. Market pruCes compnse three types of rlsk currency rate nsk mterest : at i G rlce risks, such as
anghl rowmgs deposits,
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: fmanmal mstrument witl fluctyate because of changes In market interest rates. This is based on the financial assets and .

f'nanc:al I|ab|i|ties held as of March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018,

ii) Credit risk :
“Credit risk is-the risk that a -counter party will not meet its obligations under a ﬂnancial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial Ioss .

m] L|qu1dtty r|sk PR ' o
~ Liquidity risk is the risk. that the Company" may not be able to meet ts present and future cash and collateral obligations
without incurring unacceptable Iosses -

.The cDmpanys overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredlctabllity of financlal markets and seeks to
mmimise potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance' :

‘Market Risk

The sen5|t|V|ty analys]s excludes the |mpact of movements In market variables on the carrying value of post- emplovment
benefit obligations provisions and on the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant Statement of Profit
and Loss-item Is the effect of the ‘assumed changes In the respective market risks. The Company’s activities expose it to a

. variety of financial risks, lncluding the effects of changes in forelgn currency exchange rates and interest rates However, such _
o effect is not metenal .

: a) Interest rate risk and sensntlwty

The Comapny’s exposure to the risk of changes ln market interest rates relates primarlly to the Company [5 long term debt

) obligatiens with ﬂoating interest rates, any changes in the interest rates enwronment may impact future cost of borrowmg

' Wlth all other. variables held constant, the following table demonstrates the lmpact of borrowing cost on floating rate portion

of loans and borrowmgs ' _ )

(Amount_ in %)

o L Increase/Decrease Effect on profit _before tax [ Effect on profit b_efore tax
Interest rate sensitiwtv- . in basis po.'i'n.ts , For the Year ended 31 For the Year ended 31
: ' ' o " March 2019 March 2018 .
NR B +50- -11,01,309 | E -
A : .50 : © 1L01,309 | -
uso S 450 . S . I
o - -50 1 ' o -

lnterest rate and currencv of borrowings

The befow details do not necesserii\;r represents fore:gn currency or interest rate’ exposure to the Income statement since the
.Group has taken derwatives for offsetting the foreign currency and interest rate exposure :

{Amount in %)

o : _Tota'il o Floatlng rate | Fixed rate Welghted
Particulars - - U -
: . S C - Borrowing borrowing borrowing . | Average rate
|INR LR 28,30,94,961 | '21,96,59,938 | 6,34,35,023 -
Total as on March 31, 2019 \ 28,30,94,961 | 21,96,59,938 | * 6,34,35,023 9.74%
INR o 1 23,26,57,910 | 232657910 .
Total as on March 31, 2018 - -_23,26,57,91'0 - | '23,26,57,910 . _9.35%

{b) Commo'd_lty prlce risk and _sen'sitivitv-

“ The Company is not exposed to.the movement in priceof key raw materials.
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Credit risk

‘The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities {primarily trade rec'eivables) and from its financing activities, .
including deposits with banks, mutual funds and financial Institutions and other financial Instruments. : h

Trade Recervobles
‘The Company extends credit to customers in normal course & of business, The Company considers factors such as. credit track
“record in the market and past dealings for extension. of credit to customers, The Company monitors the payment track record
of the customers. Qutstanding customer recelvables are regularly monitored. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk
with respect to trade recelvables as low, as.its customers -are Jocated in several jurisdictions and- mdustrles and operate in .
largely mdependent markets. The Company has also taken advances and secunt\ar deposits from its customers & dlstributors, S

T whrch mltlgate the credlt risk to an extent.

' Prowsron for expected credit .fosses

The Company extends credit to customers as per the internal credit policy, Any dewatlon are’ approved by appropriate
. authorities, after due consideration of the customers credentials and financial capacity, trade practices and prevailing business
and economic conditions. The Company's historical experlence of collecting receivables and.the level of default indicate that
credit #isk is fow and generally uniform across markets; consequentlv, trade receivables are considered ta be a single class of

- financial assets. All overdue customer balances are evaluated taking into account the age of. the dues, specific credit
© circumstances, the track record of the customers etc. Loss allowances and impairment Is recognised, where consldered
: appropnate by the management : '

"~ The ageing of unsecu,red trade receivable is as befow: .~

{Amountin¥)

f o o Past due but not impaired B ;
- P_a,rtic_ulars ' nterl':;‘::a?rl:i' upto6 . |- 6tol12 - | Abovel2 - Total
' - 771 ‘months months _months e
As at March 31, 2019 ‘ - B N . _ _
Trade Receivable -~ - : . ; -1 - - 78146 | - 93,25727 | 93,99,873
| As at March 31, 2018 I R _ 3 i S o )
Trade Receivable - 1,44473 38,63,652 |  53,91,748 | * 93,99873"

T Financial lnstrume’nts‘and cash deposit's o o

_' The Company cons:ders factors such as traok record size of the mstltutlon, market reputation and service standards to select -

the banks with which balances and deposits are maintained. _Generally, the balances are maintained with the institutions with:
which the Company has also availed borrowings. The Company does not maintam sagmf‘cant cash and deposlt balances other

-than those reqmred for its day to day operatlons

qumdity risk o ' ' ' ' .
. The Company’s objectlve |s fo; at aIl times malntam optimum levels of quuldlty to meet its cash and col!ateral requirements o
: IThe Company relies on a mix of borrowmgs capltal lnfusu:n and excess: operatlng cash flows to meet its needs. for funds. The.

current commltted lines of cradit are sufficient to meet its short to medium term expansmn heeds. The Companv monitors

_rolling forecasts of |ts liquidity requirements to ensuré it. has sufficient cash to meet operatlonal needs while malntalnlng :

sufficient headroom on its undrawn conmitted borrowing facilities at all times so that the Company does not breach.

' 'borrowmg limits or covenants (where apphcable) on any of its borrow]ng facilities. .

© The table below prowdes undlscounted cash ﬂows towards nar- -derivative ﬂnanc:al Iiabllltles and net- settled derlvatwe o
- financial Ilabllltles into relevant maturlty based on the remaimng perlod at the balance sheet t

e contractual maturlty date..
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- JITF URBAN WASTE MANAGEMENT (FEROZEPUR) LIMITED

Srgmflcant Accounting Policies and Notes to Flnanclal Statements

-'Note NO‘ 21
L . _ (Amountin®)
'Pa[tic_mar. | ii:?::% On Demand Le::om 6 :ﬂ:?rtlhzs >1 Years ' Total | '

.| As at March 31, 2019 R S ; -1 L
Intérest Bearing Borrowing 28,30,94,961' CL.- S - - | 28,30,94,961 | 28,30,94,961 -
Other Liabilities . 3,32,43,198 78,253 10,37,379 -] 3,21,27,566°| 3,32,43,198
Trade And Other Payables ' 54,80,105 - | 54,80,105 | - -l 5480105

' Total 32,18,18,264 | 78,253 | 65,17,482 - | 31,52,22,527 | 32,18,18,264
e ot onoemea [ T S| v | e
‘Asat March31!2018 L _ ' ' 1 _ . :
Interest Bearing Borrowrng | 23,26,57,910 | o= R - | 23,26,57,910 | 23,26,57,910

' Other Liabilities 54,55,610Q. 6,00,814 | ' 56,510 -1 47,58,286 . 54,55,610
Trade And Other Payables . 13,96,797 | | 13,96,797- -1 - 13,96,797.
Total - 23 95 10;317 -'6,00,814 14,93 307 - |'23,74,16,196 |  23,95,10,317

The Company is required to mamtaln ratlos (mcluding total debt to EBITDA / net worth, EBITDA to gross.interest, dabt service
coverage ratio and’ ‘secured caverage ratio} as mentioned in the loan agreements at specmed levels. In the event of failure to
meet any of these ratlos these loans become callable at the option of lenders, except where exemption is provided by Iender

Cornpetltion ahd pru:e risk -

" ‘The Company faces competmon from local and forelgn competltors Nevertheless, it belleves that it has competitive advantage' _
- in terms of hlgh c;uallt\lr products and bv continuously upgrading its expertise and range of products to-meet the needs of its -~
' customers . . _ . .

Capital ris_k management

The Company aim to manage its capital efﬁmently 50 as to safeguard ltS abilrty to contmue asa golng cohcern and to opttmise

-.returns to our shareholders

'The capltal structure of the Company is based on management’s judgement of the approprrate balance of key elements in

order to meet its strateglc and day to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the

. capital structure in tight of changés in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to’

maintain or adjust the capital structure the Company may adjust the amount of di\rldends pa|d to shareholders, return capital, -

 to shareholders or. |ssue new shares

The Companys pollcy is to malntam a stable and strong capltal structure with a focus on total ‘equity 'so as to maintain .
investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of |ts busmess The Company will

: take approprlate steps In order to malntam or if necessary adjust its capltal structure

ThegCompany monito_rs capital usr_ng _geanng_ ratlo, W_'thh_lS et deb‘t dnnded 'bv total\capital which -.Is given.as under:-

(Amount in 2’)

o .Particulars::." ; .Ii ll_\sat' . ‘Asat
Aok o | March 31,2019 | March 31,2018

| Loans And Borrowings _ 28,30,94,961 | . 23,26,57,910 |
Less: Cash’ And Cash Equlvalents . 3,30,960 . 6,36,480

'. Net Debt ' ' - 28,27,64,001 23,20,21,430 | -
© | Equity L ©(23,99,26,985) | *{15,05,88,609)
Total Capital . 4,28,37,016 | A 22

| Gearing Ratio __660,09% |,
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~ JITF URBAN WASTE MANAGEMENT (FEROZEPUR) LIMITED
.- Significant: Accountlng Policies and Notes to Financial Statements
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6. Fair value of financial assets and Ilabllltles

" Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrylng amounts and fair value of the Company’s financlal Instruments that are :

recognised In the fmancral statements.

{Amount in T)

As at March 31 2018.

As at March 31, 2019
'Partlculars : Garrying ) Carrying e
' amount Fair Value amount Fair yalue
' Financral assets designated at amortlsed cost o . ) . _
Cash and bank balances 3,30,960. 3,30,960 6,36,480 | 6,36,480 |
“Trade and other recelvables 9399,873 |  93,99,873 | 93,99,873 {  93,99,873 |
Other financial assets ' 10,000, 10,000 10,000 10,000 |
- : 97,40,833 | 97,40,833 | 1,00,46,353 1,00,46,353
Fmanc:al liabllitles demgnated at amortlsed cost R - o .
Borrowings- fixed rate - 6,34,35,023 6,34,35,023 23,26,57,910 | - 23,26,57,910
| 'Borrowings- floating rate 21,96,59,938 | 21,96,59,938 | = - .
Trade a_n_d'othér payables 54,80,105 :54,80,105 13,96,797 - 13,96,797
| Other financial liabilities - 3,32,43,198 | 3,32,43,198 54,55,610 54,55,610
- 32,18,18,264 | 32,18,18,264 | 23,95,10,317 | 23,95,10,317

Fair Valuation techniques

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value finanoial assets or flnanual liabilities using the bestand maost r"elevant '

data available, The fair valués of the financial assets and Jiabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an-
© asset or pald to transfer a llablllty In an orderly transactlon between market partlcipants at the measurement date
-The following methods and assiimptions were used to estimate the fair values: '

1) Fair value of cash and deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current financial assets’and I|abllit:es_

.2)

3)

approxnmate their carrwng amounts Iargelyr due-to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
Long-tétm fixed-rate and variable-raté’receivables / borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters
such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, credit risk and other risk characteristics. Fair value of variable
interest rate borrowings is not material different from.carrying values, For fixed interest rate borrowing fair value is '
determined by using the discounted cash flow (DCF) method using discount rate that reflects the rssuer s borrowings _ﬁ
rate. Risk of non-performance for the company is considered to be insignlﬁcant in valuation.-

The fair values of derjvatlves are estimated by using pricing madels, where the inplts to those models are based on
readily observable market parameters basis contractual terms, period to maturity, and market parameters such as . ..

- _ interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and volatility. These models do not contain a high level of subjectlwty as the _'

4

5)

value of flnanual Instruments traded in active- markets and are based on quoted mar

.at the balance sheet date

valuation techniques used do- not require significant judgement, and-inputs thereto are readily observable from
actively quoted market prices. Management has evaluated the credit and non-performance risks associated with ItS
derivative counterparties and helieve them to be tnslgnlﬂcant and not warrantlng a credit adjustment.

;The fair value of fixed interest bearlng Ioans borrowings and deposits is estimated by dlscounting future cash ﬂows R

using rates currently available for. debt on similar terms, credlt risk.and. remalnlng maturities,

IND AS 101 sllow Company to fair value property, plant and machlnery on transition to IND AS, the Company has fair . .|
. -va!ued property, plant and equlpment and the fair- valuatlon Is hased on replacement cost. approach '

Fair Value h|erarr:h\lr

; The followlng table prowdes the fa|r value mEasurement hlerarchy of Companv’s asset and llabllitles grouped mto Le\rel 1 to
Le\rel 3 as descrlbed below: B . . :

‘Quoted prices / publlshed NVA {unadjustedl in active markets for ldentlcal assets or liabllltles (Ievel 1) It includes falr
-at the balance sheet
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‘Significant Accountlng Policies ancl Notes to Financial Statements

Note No: 21

¢ Inputs other than quoted prices included within level.1 that are observable for the asset or liability, elther directiy
(that is, as prices} or indirectly (that is, derlved from prices) (level 2). It includes fair value of the financial instruments
that are nat traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derlvatives) Is determined by using valuation

techniques. These valuation. technigues maximise the use of observable market data where It is avallable and rely as '

little as possible on the company specific estimates. If alt significant Inputs required to faif value an instriment are
observable Derlvatwes mcluded interest rate swaps and foreign currency forwards.

- . “inputs for the asset or Ilabllltv that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable Inputs) {level 3). If -
one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is Included in‘level 3,

Falr value hierarchv

Liabilities'for'whlch falr value is disclosed

" The following table provides the fair value measurement hlerarchy of Company s asset and fiabilities, grouped into Level lto
" Level 3 as described below:

{Amount In ?}

Particulars AS at March 31, 2019 .
S Levell . . Level 2 Level 3
Financlal liabilities ' T '
‘Borrowings- fixed rate .6,34,35,023
Other financial liabilities 3,32,43,198
\ .As at March 31, 2018 )
Particulars - - _ ;
: c "7 Levell Level 2 " Level3 -
Financial liabilities ' ' —
| Borrowings- fixed rate 23,26,57,910
- | Other financial liabilities - 54,55,610 |-
- a) Liabilities for which fair value is disclosed
Partlculars - Fair valug - Valuati'on technique . | Inputs used
gl L hierarchy T ' .
Financial liabllities . B o o ' N
Other borrowings- fixed rate ' S .Le\rel'z_ -Discounted Cash Flow | Prevailing ]nterest rates.in
o R B market, Future payouts -
* | Other financial liabilities Level 2 Discounted Cash Flow | Prevailing interest rates to
' ' ' ' - | discount future cash flows

[

" 7. Retirement benefit obligations

Employee beneflt éxpenses

(Amount in ?}

Particulars

" Year ended March 31,2019 Year ended March 31,2018
Salaries and Wages : 49, 690 o 3 45,596. '
Costs-defined contrlbut|on plan - 19,523 - !
- Welfare' expenses : '8,25_2 48,921 -
" Total - 57,992 '4,14,000
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- Significant Accountlng Pol|c|es and Notes to Financial Statements
- Note No:21

8. Other disclosures

-Auditors Remuneration ' S
' (Amountin¥) - o

© | particulars T ~_| Year ended March 31, 2019 | Year ended March 31, 2018
S Statutory Audltors S : L N,
B AuditFee = -~ . ' : 35,400 . 35,760
| Total" SR GO 35400 | ~ - oss760] o

9. Related partytransactlons ‘ S e

In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24 on related party dlsclosures, name of the related party, related party
relationship, ‘transactions “and outstandlng balances including commitments where control exits ancl “with - whom

transactions have taken place durmg reported perlods, are:
Sy

Related partv'name and relationshlp

1. Key Managerlal personnel

| IS Name o T Particulars -
o1 \.Mr. Umesh Chopra’ T - | Director _
A 2. | Mr. Anuj Kumar Cd S -~ .| Director
3 | Mr. Alok Kumar . - ' ' * | Director
| 4| M, Neelesh Gupta R ' L Director
- - 2. Parent, Ultlmate Parent, Fellow subsldiarles, direct. subsudiarles and fellow step down suhsldlarles
B 8 Name ofthe Entity DR S - _ Relatlonship '
| R JITFInfrangIstIcs erited LT r R 'Ultimate Parent Company
. 2 | JITF Urbanlnfrastructure Services Limited - -~ - e ' " Parent Company
A .3 | }ITF Urban Infrastructure Lmited - -~ . .~ . Holding Company * -
L 4 | JWILInfra Limited -~ S : | Fellow Holding
5 | sindal Rail Infrastructure Limjted- Lo - | Fellow Holding. o
g 6 | JITF Water Infra { Naya Raipur). Limited =~ e Fellow Step down Subsidiary
. 77 NTRESIPL CETP (Sltarganj)lelted B : S o FellowStepdownSubsidrary
i 8. | JITF. lndustnal Infrastructure Development Companv Limited _ : Fellow Step down Sub5|dlary
i : 9 | JITF Urban Waste Management {Jalandhar) Limited. -~ - o o+ | Fellow Subsidiary
| o 10 | JITF, Urban Waste Management (Bathmda) lelted o . _ . | Fellow Subsrdl_ary- -
| _ 11 - Jindal Urban Waste Management (Visakhapatnam) Limited =~ | Fellow Subsidiary
o 12 | lindal Urban Waste Management (Tirupati) Limited. .~~~ .~~~ - | Fellow Subsidiary
i 13 | dindal Urban Waste Management (Guntur) Limited e Fellow Subsidiary
L .14 _Tlmarpur~0khla Waste Management Company lelted . ' - “Fellow Subsidiary ~
| _ 715 . Jindal- ‘Urban Waste Mapagement {Jaipur) Limited =~ .~ . o Fellow'_Subsudlary:
o 16 lmdal Urban Waste Management (Jodhpur) Limited = . . '_ : _Ee_llow's_ubsi_diary.
| --17- 1 findal Urban Waste Management {Ahmedabad) lerted ... . . |FellowSubsidiary -
‘ - 18- _Tehkhancl Waste to Electrlclty Project Limited - L ‘Fellow Subsidiary
i : 3. joint ventures/ assoclates of dlrect and indtrect subsidrarles -
" |'s.No. [ Name of the Entity R _ A _'Relatlonship S
‘_ C e wiessigyy o T T -+ | Joint Venture of fellow holdmg _
| 220 | sMcuwiLgyy - T © -+ llointventure of_fel_low hotding "
| 3 | JwiL-Ranhill vy . e Joint Venture of fellow,holding -
e *| TAPI-IWIL (V) ' R ' .J Joint Venture of fellow holding
o 5 | Eldeco SIDCULlndustrlal Park Limlted - ssociate/loint Venture offellow holdlng
‘ R 6 LadurnerSRL ‘ ocrate/Jo_int’Venture




JITF URBAN WASTE MANAGEMENT (FEROZEPUR) LIMITED
‘Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Flnanclal Statements

Note No: 21 o \
7 MEILJWIL (V) - Joint Venture of fellow holding
8 | IMCAWIL (IV) Joint Venture of fellow holding
9 [ IWILSPMLQV) Joint Venture of fellow holding .
4. Trust under control
S, Name of.the Entity _Relationship
No. _ _ . -
1 | HTF Urban Infrastructure lelted Employees Group Gratuity Assurance : Post employment benefit plan .
' Scheme : _ ' .

 Related Party'Transactions .

: (Amountin¥) -
. . parent / Holding fFellow . Subsidiary / Fellow
L ' : . " Holding Companies " Subsidiary Companles .
S.NO. | Particulars . : ' . i T - R
' FY2018-19 | Fy2017.18 | FY2018- | FY2017-
. o _ 19 18 -
A Transactions ' '
Expenses incurred by others and reim bursed by companv : . _
JITF Urban infrastructure Limited ' 54,644 26,67,104 | . - - .-
.| JITF Urban Waste Management {Jatandhar) Limited - - 23,609 28,913
1 JITF Urban Waste Management (Bathlnda) leited - - 1,471 -
1 Interest expense. .
“JITF Urban Infrastructure Limited - ' 2,00,41,168 | 1,64,69,875 - -
Interest on falr valuation of financial Instrument ) L o
| e Urban infrastructure Limited - 2,73,69,280 | 15,02,400 - -
| Loan repaid during the year . ' ' ' _.
| JITF Urban Infrastructure Limited - 5,00,000 - - -
.+ | Loan taken during the year 1 _
- JITE Urban Infrastructure Limited, 3,24,00,000 | 1,51,00,000. - -
B | Outstanding balances - '
: Equity Share Capital by Holding _ :
. JITF.Urban Infrastructure Limited ] - 5,28,800 . 528,800 - -
Optional Convertiable Preference Share by Hoiding ' e '
JITF Urban Infrastructure Limited - 18,78,00,000 | 18,78,00,000 - :
CCDs Liabilities - - ' : . T
JITF Urban Infrastructu re Limited *" 6,15,00,000 | 6,15,00,000 : -
Loan pavable o : :
JITF Urban lafrastructure Limited .21,96,59,938 | 16,92,22,887 | - -
Payables - oy L
JITF Urban Infrastructure Limited . - 54,644 6,00,814 | - - -
JITF Urban Infrastructure Limited (OCPS) - 3,21,27,566 | - 4'7,58-,286' 1 o= -
| HITF Urban Waste Management {Jalandhar) Limited ; SR IR . 23,609 -

. ..Patrculars

. R'emun_e_rati,on-to K_e'y‘Managernent_ Personnel -

(Ar'n.ount in )

_.Short-Term employee benefits

Post- Employment benefits
- Defined contribution plan
- Defined benefit plan .

Year Ended March 31,2019

" Year Ended March 31, 2018

Total.
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: 10 Based on the intimation recewed from supplier regarding their status under the Micro, Small and. Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, the requlred dlsclosure is given below * :

L
1

(Amount in%)

5t | particul . o | AsatMarch’|  AsatMarch
No. o .- 32,2019 | 31,2018

Princi'pal amount dueoUtstanding . h . - : _ . e

Interestdueon(llaboyeandunpald ' o C - ' . -|

i

2

3. | Interest paid to the supplrer B " - ' - T
. 4 Payments made tothe supplrer beyond the appointed day durlng the year. |- . -1 L -

5

6

7

lnterestdue and payablefor the. perlod ofdelay L S - |
Interestaccrued and remainingunpaid- = - . [ I T ' L.

| Amaount of further mterest remalnlng due and payable in succeedlng year ’ S S

* To the extent Informatlon available with the company
: 11 Segment Reportlng

lnforrnation about prlmary segment

- The Company is engaged prlmarlly into- Munlcrpal solrd ‘waste project. The Companys primary segment as |dentlf‘ed by
: management is Mumcrpal solid waste product The company operates into one primary segment.

. Segments ha\re been |dentified taklng into account. nature of product and drfferential rlsk and returns of the segment

- Informatjon about Geographical Segment — Secondary

The Company s operations are Iocated in lndla and company $ product Is also sold in India, Therefore, there is no geographical
: segment : . o .

- 12, Earmngs per share

- The followrng isa reconmlratron of the equ|ty shares used.in the computation of baslc and diluted earnings per equ|ty share

_(Numbe_r of shares)

3 ' Year ended Year ended -

Particulars March 31,2019 | March31,2018

Issued equuty shares’ L N 58,756 - . 58, 756

" Eqmty shares compulsonly |ssuable oh conversion of CCD o 6,150,000 . _ 6,150,000
| Weighted average shares outstanding - Basic and Diluted - ' ' N . :

A _ : ; L _ 6,208,_756 : 6_,208,756

.l'-'

Net profrt / (loss) avarlahle to’ equity holders of the Company used in the baslc and diluted earnlngs per share was determrned
as follows: . . . . i _ Sl

{Amount in ?)- :

“Par'ticulars : - Y‘-’a'f‘-’.'_‘"'ed”‘ Year ended .

] _ . _ “March 3_‘_1, 2019 March 31 2018

| Profit / (loss) after tax-8. . | (8,93,38376) | (3, 66,85,221) |
Basic Earhings pershare{B/A} (2‘) o U o l14‘.39:} i . {591 | _
Diluted Earnings pershare_{B{A) & e R (34.39) | . (5.91) ‘

The number of shares used in computmg basic EPS is the welghted average

The diluted EPSis calculated on the same basis as basrc EPS after adjustlng o,
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3

13. The company does not have profit in current year, Therefore,' premium on redemption of Optionally Convertible -

- 14,

15,

Preference shares as per'Section 55 of the Companles Act, 2013 could not be made. The Premium on redemptlon of
Preference shares would be provlded for in Profit and Loss account in the year of profit.

The Concessioning Authority |.e. Munlupa! Corporation, Ferozepur ‘did not fulfill the condltlons / obligations of the .
concession Agreement and thus the company terminated the concession agreement and referred theé matter for =
arbitration ‘which s pending befare the Arbitral Trlbunal The company Is hopeful of getting the award in its favor ] view'

ofthe same there Is a material uncertainty that the company would be able to continue asagoing concern. SRR

No deferred tax asset is created in view of the virtwal certalnty supported by convincing ewdence as to the suffi cient future-
taxable proFt . . .

.16, Prewous year fgures have been regrouped/ rearranged wherever considered necessary to conform to current year’s -
classification. :

17, Notes 1 to 16 are annexed to and form an integral part of_flnan_c'IaI statements. o

T As per our report of even date attached I For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For N.C. Aggarwal & Co. o C ' JITF Urban Waste Management (Ferozepur) Limited .

Aditi Agg__arwal

_ Partner.

\ M.No. 521588
‘Place :New Delhi
Dated :21st May 2019

. _Chartered Accountants
_Firm Registration No. Q03273N" ™

- Alok Kumar
Director .
DIN - 00930344

s Dlrector
DIN - 05277483




